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HERITAGE BRANDS LEM!TED.(FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LINHTED) ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your direclors present their report, together with the financial statements of the Group, being the Company and is controlled ertities for the financial year
ended 31 July 2010,

Principat Activities and Significant Changes in Nature of Activities
The principal activities of the consofidated group during the financiat year were:
« manufaciuring and distribution of hair care products; and

« distribution of cosmetics products.

Operating Results and Review of Operations for the year

Operating Results

The consolidated loss of the group amounted to $2,718,382 (2009: Loss $6,212,318). This represented an 57% decrease on losses reported for {he year
ended 2009. The significant improvement was largely due to the increase in sales of Innoxa products, subsequent to the acquisition of incolabs Holdings
Pty Ltd and its subsidieries.

Review of Operations

Please refer to the Chairman's Report for detalls of Review of Operations.

Financial Position

The net assets of the consolidated group have increased by $1,144,281 from 31 July 2608 to $685,822 in 2010. This increase Is due to the following:

- Proceeds from issue of shares - $3,862,673;
+ Consotlidated losses for the year ended 31 July 2010 - $2,718,382.

The direstors believe that the group is in a stable financial position te sun its current cperations profitably in 201011 financial year.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs
The folfowing significant changes in the state of affairs of the parent entity occurred during the financiat year:

The Company completed the acquisition of Innoxa Group Ply Ltd and its subsidieries on 31 October 2009.

Revenue of lrnoxa Group Pty Lid and its subsidiaries included in the consoiidated revenue of the Group since the acquisition amounted to $5,860,599.
Loss of Innoxa Group Ply Ltd and its subsidiaries included in consolidated results of the Group since the acguisition date amounted to $2,032,350.

Or: 28 October 2009 the directors resolved to cancel 2,000,000 share options previously issued fo the ex-directors.

On 16 December 2009 the Company issued 193,133,617 ordinary shares at $0.02 each to existing shareholders on the basis of 1 share for every 5.2
shares held. The shares rank equally for dividends paid after 16 December 2009,

Changes in controlled entities and divisions:
{i) Purchase of 100% of equity in ihnoxa Group Pty Lid and s subsidieries, which distributes hair care and cosmetic produsts,

Dividends Paid or Recommended
No dividends was paid or declared for payment during the financial year.
After Balance Date Events

1. A an Extraordinary meeting of shareholders held on 08 August 2010 the shareholders of the cornpany:

- Approved the purchase of 100% interest in Creative Brands Ply Ltd (CB), in consideration for the isste by the company of 217,762,810 ordinary
shares and the appointment of foliowing former associates of CB as directors of the Company:

a) Wiiliam McCariney
b) Stephen Leslie Mason
¢) Stephen Donald Alfred Goodey
d} Peter Henry Townsend Cox
- Approved change of company name from Soda Brands Limited to Haerltage Brands Limited to better reflect the brand value of the group.

2. Name of the company was changed to Heritage Brands Limited on 12 August 2010.

3. The share sale agreement between Heritage Brands Limited and CB was executed on 10 August 2010,

4. The executive service agresment with Stephen Donald Alfred Goodey as per ferms of sale agreement was executed on 10 August 2010,
5. A deed of equalisation for new loans fo be provided by incoming directors was executed on 20 August 2010.

8. A loan agreement for hew facllities from sharsholders amounting to $2.8 millions was executed on 20 August 2010.

7. New shares issued to CB were Ested or: NSX on 10 August 2010.

8. New Loans amounting to $962,857 were received from shareholders to the group.

9. Operations were amalgameled and relocated to CB premises in Melbourne, i August 2010.

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

Please refer to the Chairman's Report regarding Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies,

Environmental Issues
The consolidated group’s operations are not subject to significant environmental regufations under the law of the Commonwealth and State.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635 AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information on Direcfors

FAIRFULL David Jehn {Non-exec Chairman} No change during the year
Quialifications —  B.Com (UNSW), A.C.LS, C.P.A, Ffin, MALCE.
Experience —  Mr, David John Fairfull is merchant banker with over 40 years experience in mergers and acguisitions

and underwrting prolects. During the past three years, Mr, Fairfull has served as a Director of the
following fisted companies:

Australian Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Gazal Corporation Limited

New Hope Corporation Limited*®

5P Telemedia Limited

Stockiand Trust Group

Washington H. Soul Pattinson and Company Limited*

* denotes current directorship

Mr. Fairfull represents Soul Private Equity Limited (SPEL), the majority shareholder of the group. SPEL
holds 114,962,106 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares - 47.93% of issued capital,

Interest in Shares and Options - 620,000 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

Special Responsibilities —  Member of Audit Committee & Remuneration Committee

KROK Maxim (Non-executive Director) No change during the year

interest in Shares and Options — The director is a nominee director appointed by Maxmize Equity Piy Ltd (holding 91,431,644 Fully Paid

Ordinary Shares and 500,000 options), the ulimate holding company of Kistani Holdings Ply Lid
{Kistari). Kistani holds 11,369,060 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares - 24.63% of issued capital and 100,000
oplions

BEINART Steven (CEC -Executive Diraclor) No change during the year

Interest in Shares and Options - The director is a nominee diractor appointed by Maxmize Equity Pty Lid (holding 91,431,644 Fuily Paid
Ordinary Shares and 500,000 opticns), an ultimate holding company of Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd
(Kistani). Kistani holds 11,369,080 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares - 24.63% of issued capital and 100,600

options

GOODEY Stephen Donald Alfred (Managing Director) Appointed on 06 August 2010

Qualifications e BJGom, MBA, IMM

Experience —  Extensive experience in FMCG companies internationally.

interest in Shares and Options — 18,299,834 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

MASON Stephen Leslie (Non-exec Director) Appointed on 08 August 2010

Qualifications - LLB, B,Com, FCPA, FCIS

interest in Shares and Options — 63,895,060 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

Direciorships held in other listed entities —  Lemarane Corporation Limited

during the three yaars prior to the current

year :

McCARTNEY William Thomas (Non-exec Director) Appointed on 08 August 2010

Interest in Shares and Options —— 80,671,814 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

COX Peter Henry Townsend (Non-exec Director) Appointed on 08 August 2010

Qualifications —  B.Com (Melb), ACA

Irderest in Shares and Options — 18,299,834 Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

SMITH Brent Charles Albert (Non-exec Director) Appointed on 06 August 2010

Quatifications - B.Bus, F.Fin

Interest in Shares and Options — Nil

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec Chairman}) Retired on 08 August 2010

Qualifications - Bachelor of Commerce, MAICD, SAFin

Experience —  Twelve year financial service industry experience with Souls Private Equiy Limited and six years
chartered accounting experience

Interest in Shares and Options - 115,000 Fully Pai¢ Ordinary Shares and 250,000 Opticns

PHOTAKIS, Christopher {Non-exec Director) Retired on 07 August 2009

Interest in Shares and Oplions - Nil

Company Secretary

The following person held the position of company secretary at the end of the financial year:
MCGIBBON, Christopher Witliam was appointed company secretary on 0 February 2009,
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Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, 7 meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were heid.
Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Committee Meetings
Directors' Audit
Meetings Compmittes
Number | Number | Number § Number
eligitle |attended] eligible |{atlended
lo aliend {o attend
FAIRFULL David John (Non-exec Chairman} 7 8 1 1
KROK Maxim (Non-executive Director} 7 7 - -
BEINART Steven {CEQ -Execudive Director) 7 7 1 1
FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-gxec Chairman) 7 4] 1 1
PHOTAKIS, Christopher {Non-exec Director} - - - -

Indemnifying Officers or Auditor
During or since the end of the financial year, the company has given an indemnity or entered into an agreement to indemnify, or paid or agreed fo pay
insurance premiums as follows:

— The company has paid premiums fo insure each the directors against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in defending legal
proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in the capacity of director of the company, other than conduct involving a wilful breach of duty
in relation io the company. The premiums paid amounted fo $27,475.

—  Noindemnities have been issued or insurance premium paid in respect of auditors of the Company.

Options

At the date of this repori, the unissued ordinary shares of Heritage Brands Limited {(Formerly Soda Brands Limited) under option are as follows
Grant Date Date of expiry Exercise price Number under option Issued fo
1/12/2006 3107/2012 25¢ 250,000 Andrew Fairfull
9/09/2008 01/08/2011 25¢ 100,000 Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd
G/0%/2008 01/08/2012 25¢ 500,000 Maximize Equity Pty Lid
8/09/2008 01/08/2012 25¢ 150,000 Richard Stanley

1,000,000

Options holders do not have any rights o participate in any issues of shares or other interests in the Company or any other entity.
There have been no unissued shares or inferests under option of any controlied entity within the Group during or since reporting dale.
No opticns were granted as remuneration key management persennei and other executives during the year.

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in any proceadings to which the company is a party for
~ the purpose of taking respensibility on behalf of the company for all or any part of those proceedings.

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Non-audit Services

The board of directors, in accordance with advice from the audit committee, is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year is compatible
with the general standard of independence for auditors Imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The directors are safisfied that the services disclosed below
did not compromise the external auditor's independence for the following reasons:

« alt non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the audit committee prior o commencement to ensure they do not adversely affect the integrity
and objectivity of the auditor; and

» the nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles refating to auditor indeperdence in accordance with APES 110: Code of
Ehics for Professional Accountants set by the Accounting Professionat and Ethical Standards Board,

The following fees were paid or payable to Rothsay Accounting Services Pty Ltd for non-audit services provided during the year ended 31 July 2010:

&
Taxation services 5,469
5,469

Auditor's Independence Declaration

The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year ended 31 July 2010 has been received and can be found on page 7 of the Annuat Report.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) has been designed to align key managemant personnel objectives
with sharehoider and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and offering specific long-term incerdives based on key
performance areas affecting the consolidated group's financial results. The board of Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited} believes the
remuneration policy to be approgpriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain the best key management personnet fo run and manage the
consolidated group, as well as create goal congruence between directors, executives and shareholders.

The hoard's policy for determining the nature and amount of remuneration for key management personnel of the consclidated group is as follows:
» The remuneration policy is required to be developed by the remuneration committee and approved by the board after seeking professional advice
from independent external consuliants. ‘

s All key management personnel receive a base salary (which is based on factors such as length of service and sxperience), superannuation, fringe
benefits, options and performance incentives.

» Performance incentives are generaily only payed once predetermined key performance indicators have baen met.

» Incentives paid in the form of optione or rights are intended to align the interests of the directers and company with those of the shareholders. In this
regard, key management personnel are prohibited from limiting risk attached to those Instruments by use of derivatives or other means.

+ The remuneration committee reviews key management personnel packages annualiy by reference to the consolidated group’s performance,
executive performance and comparable information from industry sectors,

The performance of key management personnel is measured against criteria agreed annually with each executive and is based predominanily on the
forecast growth of the consolidated group’s profits and sharehoiders’ value. All bonuses and incentives must be linked to predetermined performance
criteria. The Board may, however, exercise its discretion in relation to approving ncentives, bonuses and options, and can recommend changes to the
committee’s recommendations. Any changes must be justified by reference to measurable performance criferla. The policy is designed 1o attract the
highest calibre of executives and reward them for performance results leading to long-term growth in shareholder wealth. Due 1o the small size of the group
and the operating deficii suffered during the past few years only token bonuses and safary incerdives have been granted.

Key management personnel receive a superannuation guarantee contribution required by the government, which is currently 9%, and do not receive any
other retirement benefits. Some individuals, however, have chosen to sacrifice part of their salary fo increase payments towards superannuation.

All remuneration paid fo key management personne is valued at the cost fo the company and expensed.

The Board's policy is to remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for time, commitment and responsibilities. The remuneration committee
determines payments to the non-executive directors and reviews their remuneration annuatly, based on market practice, dulies and accouniability.
Independent external advice is sought when required. The maximum aggregate amount of fees that can be paid to non-executive directors is subject to
approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

Key management personnel are aiso entified and encouraged to participate in the employee share and option arrangements fo align directors’ interests with
shareholder interests,

Options granied under the arrangement do not carry dividend or voling rights. Each option is entifled o be converted into one ordinary share once the
interim or final financial report has been disclosed to the public and is valued using the Black-Scholes methodology.

Key management personnel subject fo the arangement are subject to a policy geveming the use of external hedging arrangerments. Such personnel are
prohibited from entering into hedge arrangements, i.e. put options, on unvested shares and options which form part of their remuneration package. Terms
of employment signed by such personnei contain details of such restrictions.

Performance based remuneration

The key performance indicators {KPIs) are set annually, with a certain level of consultation with key management personnet fo ensure huy-in. The
measures are specifically tailored to the areas each Individuat is involved in and has a level of controt over. The KPIs target areas the board believes hold
greater potential for group expansion and profit, covering financiai and non-financial as well as short and long-term goals. The level set for each KPI is
based on budgeted figures for the group and respeciive industry standards.

Performance in relation to the KP's is assessed annually, with bonuses being awarded depending on the number and deemed difficulty of the KPIs
achieved. Foliowing the assessment, the KPls are reviewed by the remuneration committee in light of the desired and actual outcomes, and their efficiency
is zssessed in relation to the group’s goals ard shareholder wealth, before the KPI's are set for the following year.

In determining whether or not a KPI has been achieved, Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limied) bases the assessment on audited
figures, however, where the KP1 involves comparison of the group or a division within the group to the market, independent reports are obtained.

Relationship between remuneration policy and company performance

The remuneration policy has been tailored to Increase goal congruence between shareholders, directors and executives. Two methods have been applied
to achieve this aim, the first being a performance-based bonus based on key performance indicators, and the second being the issue of opfions fo the
rnajority of directors and executives to encourage the afignment of personal and shareholder interesis.

The key performance indicators (KPls) are set annually, with a certain level of consultation with key management personnel to ensure buy-in. The
measures are specificelly tailored fo the areas each individual is involved in and has a level of confrol over. The KPis target areas the board believes hold
greafer potential for group expansion and profit, covering financial and non-financial as well as short and feng-ferm goals. The level set for each KPIl is
based on budgeted figures for the group and respective industry standards.

Performance in relation to the KP's is assessed annually, with bonuses being awarded depending on the number and deemed difficulty of the KPls
achieved. Following the dssessment, the KPIs are reviewed by the remuneration committes in fight of the desired and aciual outcomes, and their efficiency
is assessed in relation 1o the group’s goals and shareholder wealth, before the KP1's are set for the following year.

In determining whether or not a KP| has been achieved, the group bases the assessment on audited figures.
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Employment Details of Members of Key Management Personnel and Gther Executives

The following table provides employment details of persons who were, during the finandial year, members of key management personnel of the
consolidated group, and to the extent different, were amongst the five group executives or company executives receiving the highest remuneration. The
table also lusirates the proportion of remuneration that was performance and non-performance based and the propodion of remuneration received in the

_form of option.

Position Held as at 31 July 2010 and any change
during the year

Group Key Management Personnel

FAIRFULL, David John (Non-exec No ¢hange during the year
Chairman)

KROK Maxim (Non-executive Director) No change during the year
BEINART Steven (CEO -Executive No change during the year
Director)

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec Chalrman} No change during the year
PHOTAKIS, Christopher {Non-exec Retlired on 07 August 2008
Director)

McGIBBON Christopher William (General No change during the year
Manager - shared services)

Proportions of elemenis of
remuneration not related to

performarnce
Fixed
Salary/Fees Total
% Yo
Group Key Management Personnel
FAIRFULL David John {Non-exec 100 100
KROK Maxim (Non-executive Direcior) 160 100
BEINART Steven (CEQ -Execudive 160 100
Director)
GOODEY Stephen Donald Alfred 100 160
{Meanaging Director)
MASON Stephen Leslie (Non-exec 100 160
Director)
MecGIBBON Chiistopher William (General 100 100

Manager - shared services)
The employment terms and conditions of key management personne! and group executives are formaiised in contracts of employment.

Changes in Directors and Executives Subsequent to Year End

On 06 August 2018, Andrew Fairfull retired from the position of Non-Executive Chairman.
On 06 August 2010, Willlam Thomas McCariney commenced as a Director.

On 06 August 2018, Stephen Lestie Mason commenced as a Director.

On 06 August 2010, Stephen Donald Alired Goodey commenced as the Managing Director.
On 08 August 2010, Peter Henry Townsend Cox commenced as a Director.

On 068 August 2010, Brent Charles Albert Smith commenced as a Director.
Remuneration Details for the Year Ended 31 July 2010

The following table of payments and benefit details, in respect to the financial year, the components of remunsration for each member of the key
management personnel for the consolidated group and, to the extent different, the five group executives and five company executives receiving the highest
remuneration:-
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Table of Benefits and Payments for the year ended 31 July 2010

Short-ferm FPost Total
benefits Employment $
Salary, Fees and
Leave Superarnuation

2010 b3 5
Group Key Management
Personnet
FAIRFULL David John (Non- 19,983 - 19,983
executive Chairman)
KROK Maxim {Non- 30,900 1,800 32,700
executive Dirsctor)
BEINART Steven (CEO - 20,000 1,800 21,800
Executive Director)
FAIRFULL Andrew {Non- 24,000 2,160 26,160
exec Chairman) :
PHOTAKIS, Christepher - - ~
(Non-exec Director)
McGIBBON Christopher 206,316 18,661 224,977
William {General Manager -
shared services)

301,189 24,421 325,620

Short-term Post Fotal
benefits Employment $
Salary, Fees and
lLeave Superannuation

2009 $ $
Group Key Management
Personnel
KROK Maxim (Non- 26,667 - 26,867
executive Director)
BEINART Steven (CEC - 5,000 - 5000
Executive Director)
FAIRFULL Andrew (Non- 24,000 2,160 26,160C
exec Chairman)
PHOTAKIS, Christopher 5,000 - 5,000
{Non-exec Director)
GHATTA, Nicalas (Ex 208,850 9,451 218,301
Cirector)
GIMITRIDIS Stavros (Ex 15,600 - 15,000
Director)
BRETT Hilton (Ex Director) 16,350 - 16,350
KULMAR Siephen (Ex 18,344 - 16,344
Director)

317,211 11,611 328,822

Securities Received that are not Performance Related
No members of key management personnel are entifled fo receive securities which are not performance-based as part of their remuneration package.

Cash Bonuses, Performance-Related Bonuses and Share-based Payments
No options or bonuses were granted as remuneration fo key management personnel and other executives during the vear.

This Report of the Directors’, incorporating the Remuneration Repott, Is sighed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directars.

FAIRFULL Bavid Johin (Nor gx8e tHairman)

Dated: 28/10/2010



Chartered Accountants )

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED {(FORMERLY SODA BRANDS
LIMITED) AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 July 2010 there
have been:

(i} no contraventions of the auditer independence requirements as set out in the Corporations
Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(il no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Name of Firm Reothsay ghartejed Accountants ﬁ

(1

Name of Partner nk Vaefas
Date 29/10/2010
Address Level 1, 12 O'Conneil Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Level 1,12 O'Connell Street, Sydney NSW 2000
GPO Box 542, Sydney NSW 2001 Liability Limited

. . by a scheme approved
Phone: {02) 8815 5400 Fax: (02) 8815 s401 o or Prafoe

o s
Chartered Accountants ABN: g9 087 479 410 EXGELLENCE, Standards Legislation




HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

Continuing operations

Revenue

Changes in inveniories

Employee benefits expense

Sales, marketing and branding expense
Distribution Expense

Reorganisation transaction fees
Freight & cartage

Management fees

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finahce costs

Other expenses

Loss on impairment of goodwill

L.oss before income tax

Income tax expense

Discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Earnings per share

Note

2

From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share {cents)

Diluted earnings per share {cents)
From continuing operations:

Basic eamings per share (cents)

Diluted earnings per share {cents)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements,

~ =

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2000
$ % 3 £
7,094,340 2,364,386 1,178,817 2,328,212
(3,940,113) (2,278,689) (918,847) (2,253,520)
(2,241,135)  (953,795)  (368,796)  (953,74H)
(1,167,905  (302,706) (59,428)  (300,706)
347,551y  (294,005) (36,005)  (292,365)
(541,824 - - -
(364,132) - (36,005} -
(168,314) - - -
(183,483) (78,365) (32,006) {78,365)
(172,473) (68,649) (77,559) (68,649)
(685,792) (79 ,444) (477971  (790,729)
- (3,808,981 - {3,808,961)
(2,718,382) (6,212,318)  (827,890) (6,218,878)
(2,718,382) (6,212,318)  (827,8090) (65,218,878)
(1.63) {13.88)
{1.62) (10.68)
(1.63) - (13.88)
{1.62) (10.68)



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

Consolidated Group
Note 2010 2009
$ $

Profit for the year (2,718,382) (6,212,318)

Parent Enfity
2010 2008
$ $
(827,890) (6,218,878)

Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (2,718,382) {6,212,318)

(827,800) (6,218,878)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
‘Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Other assets )
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets

Property, plant and equipment
intangible assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Short-term provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings
Other long-term provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued capital
Accumuiated losses
TOTAL EQUITY

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES '
STATEMENT OF FINANCGIAL POSITION AS AT 31 JULY 2010
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
Note 2010 2009 2010 2008
$ $ $ $

8 354,136 19,879 50,991 18,022

9 950,213 286,955 3,005,358 439,737
10 881,408 641,687 110,000 621,313
15 133,131 62,496 11,448 62,496
2,318 889 1,010,817 3,177,797 1,141,568

11 - - 805 704
13 448,551 58,349 26,082 58,340
14 1,549,602 - - -
1,998,053 58,349 26,887 58,053

4,316,942 1,069,166 3,204,684 1,200,621

18 2,652,782 897,750 486,512 887,347
18 7,246 - - -
2,660,028 897,750 486,512 887,347

17 770,000 629,885 - 629,885
19 201,093 - - -
971,093 629,885 - 629,865

3,631,121 1,627,635 486,512 1,617,232
685,621 {458,469) 2,718,172 (316,611)

20 11,747,678 7,885,006 11,747 678 7,885,008
(11,061,857) (8,343,475}  (9,020,606)  (8,201,617)
685,821 (458,469) 2,718,172 (316,811)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

. Foreign
Ordinary Accumulated  Currency

g’ hqre Losses Translation Total
apital
Reserve
Consolidated Group 3 $ $ 3
Balance at 1 August 2008 6,912,808 {2,131,157) (9.521) 4772130
Shares issued during the year 972,198 - - 972,198
Loss attributable to members of parent entity - {6,212,318) - (6,212,318)
Total other comprehensive income for the year - - 9,521 9,521
Balance at 31 July 2002 7,885,006  (8,343,475) - (468,469)
Shares issued during the year 3,862,872 - - 3,862,672
1.oss atiributable to members of parent entity - (2,718,382) - (2,718,382
Balance at 31 Juily 2010 11,747,678  {11,061,857) - 685,821
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
Ordina Foreign
Sharery AC?_L;Z‘;};&;% Currergcy Total
Capital Translation
Parent Entity $ $ $
Balance at 1 August 2008 6,912,808  ({1,882,739) - 4,930,069
Shares issued during the year 972,198 - - 972,198
Loss atiributable to members of parent entity - (8,218,878} - (6,218,878)
Balance at 31 July 2009 7,885,006  (8,201,617) - (316,611)
Shares issued during the year ‘ 3,862,672 - - 3,862,672
l.oss atiributable o members of parent entity - (827,890} - (827,850)
Balance at 31 July 2010 11,747,678  (9,029,506) - 2,718,172

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

CASH FL.OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers .
Interest received

Payments to suppliers and employees

Finance costs

Net cash provided used in operating activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of business

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

L.oans made io subsidieries

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from borrowings

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/ {decrease) in cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial yeér

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Note

23

8
8

12

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ $
7,061,583 2,629,375 1427283 2,537,664
2,724 1,482 624 1,482
(10,560,344) (3,748,811) (1,722,014) (3,487.694)
{172,474) (68,649) {77,559) (68,684%)
(3,668,501) (1,186,603)  (371,666) (1,016,986)
171 - 171 -
- (515,825) (101}  (515,825)
- - - (169,001)
- - (2,828,222 -
171 {515,825) (2,828,152)  (684,826)
3,232,787 972,198 3,232,787 972,198
770,000 629,885 - 628,885
4,002,787 1,602,083 3232787 1,602,083
334,457 {100,345} 32,969 (99,739)
19,679 120,024 18,022 117,761
354,136 19,679 50,991 18,022




HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

This financia! report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of Heritage Brands Limited (Formery Soda Brands Limited) and controlied
entities {'Consolidated Group' or ‘Group’), and $he separate financial statements and notes of Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) as an
individuat parent entity ('Parent Entity’).

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Inferpretations, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australfan Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in & financial report containing refevant and reliable
information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented below
and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

The financia report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair vaiue of
selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial fabilities.

Going concern basis
During the year ended 31 July 2010, the Group incurred & negative operating cash flows of $3,668,501, As at 31 July 2010 the Group has a deficiency of

current assets over current Eabilites of $341,138.

Notwithstanding the above, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis which contemplaies the continuily of normail business
activilies and realisation of assets and seltlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

To continue as & going concern the Group requires additional funding to be secured within the next year from sources incliding:

deferment of the repayment of existing borrowings from the major shareholders,

raising additionat borrowings from major shareholders,

equily capital raising, and

the generation of sufficient funds from operating activities, subsequent fo the acquisifion of 100% inferest in the Creative Brands Piy Ltd and consolidatien
of the business acfivities in Victoria.

® % k¥

Having carefully assessed the uncertainties relating to lixelihood of securing additional funding, the Group's ability to effectively manage their expenditure and
cash flows from operations, the directors helieve that the Group will continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future and therefors It is
apprapriate to prepare the financial staternents on a going concern basis.

in the event that the assumptions underpinning the basis of preparation do not ocour as anticipated, there is significant uncertainty whether the Group wilt
continue to operate a going corcern. If the Group is unable to continue as a going concern it may be required to realise il's assets and extinguish it's liabilities
other than in the normal course of business and at amounts different to those stated in the financial statements.

No adjusiments have been made fo the financial reports relating to the recoverability and classification of the asset carnrying amounts or the classification of
liabifities that might be necessary should the Group not continue as a going concern.

(a) Principies of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements Incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of entities controlied by Heritage Brands Limited {Formerly Soda
Brands Limited) at the end of the reporting pericd. A controlled enfity is any entity over which Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited)
has the power fo govern 1he financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from the entity's activities. Control wil generatly exist when the parent
owns, direcily or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half of the voting power of an entity. In assessing the power to govern, the existence and effect
of holdings of actuat and potential voting rights are also considered.

Whare controfied entities have entered or left the group during the year, the financlal performance of those entities are included only for the pericd of the
year that they were controlled. A list of controfied entities is contained in Note 12 to the financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-group balances and transactions between entities In the consolidated group have been
eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with those adopted by the
parent entity.

Business Combinations

Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains contrel over one or more businesses and results in the consolidation of its assets and liabilities.

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it fs a combination involving entities or businesses under common
control. The acquisition method requires that for each business combinafion one of the combining entifies must be identified as the scquirer (i.e. parent
entity). The business combination will be accounted for as at the acquisition date, which is the date that control over the acguires is obtained by the
parent entity. At this dale, the parent shall recognise, in the consolidaled accounts, and subject 1o certain limited excepifons, the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. [n addition, contingent liabilities of the acquiree will be recognised where a present obligation has
been Incurred and its fair value can be refiably measured.

The acquisition may result in the recogniticn of goodwiil (refer note 1(n}) or a gain from a bargain purchase. The method adepted for the measurement of
goodwill will impact on the measurement of any non-controlling inferest to be recognised in the acquiree where less than 100% ownership intetest is heid
in the acqguiree.

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination pius the acquisition date fair value of any previously heid
aquity interest shall form the cost of the investment in the separate financial statements. Consideration may comprise the sum of the assets transferred
by the acquirer, liabilities incurred by the acquirer to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issuied by the acquirer.

Fair value uplifts in the value of pre-existing equily holdings are taken to the statement of comprehensive income. Where changes in the vaiue of such
equity holdings had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income, sueh amotnts are recycled to profit or loss.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

Included in the measurement of consideration transforred Is any asset or Hability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Any chiigation
incurred refating to contingent consideration is classified as either a financial liability or equity instrument, depending-upon the nature of the arrangement.
Rights to refunds of consideration previcusly pald are recognised as a receivable. Subsequent to initial recognition, contingent consideration classified as
aquily Is not remeasured and its subsequent seftlement is accounted for within equity. Gontingent consideration classified as an assef o7 a fiability is
remeasured each reporfing period fo fair value through the statement of comprehensive income unless the change in value can be identified as existing at
acquisition date.

All transaction costs Incurred in relation to the business combination are expensed to the statement of comprehensive income.

Income Tax
The income tax expense {revenue} for the year comprises current income tax expanse {income) and deferred tax expense (income).

Current income tax expense charged to ihe profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable Income calculated using applicable income tax rates enacted, or
substantially enacted, as at the end of the reporting period. Current tax liabilities (assets) are therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the relevant taxation authority.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the year as well unused fax losses.

Current and deferred income tax expense (income} is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the profit or loss when the tax relates to iterns that
are cradited or charged directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assels and liabilitfes and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets also resuli where amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are avallable. No
deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liabifity, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on
accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assats and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rales enacted or substantively enactad at reporting date. Their measurement also reflects the manner in which management expects to
recover or settie the carrying amount of the related asset or llability.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recegnised oniy to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the benefils of the deferred tax assef ¢an be ulllised.

Where temporary differences exist in relation fo investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is not prebable that the reversal wilt occur ins the
foreseeable future.

Current fax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous
realisation and seftiement of the respective asset and lability wilt occur, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of
set-off exists, the deferred tax assets and labililies relate to Income taxes fevied by the same taxation authority on sither the same taxable entily or
different taxable entities where it is intended thai net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability witl occur in
future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or setiled.

Tax Consolidation

Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated group
under tax consolidation legistation. Each entity in the group recognises Its own current and deferred fex assets and liabilities. Such taxes are measured
using the ‘stand-alone taxpayer appreach fo aficeation. Current tax liabilities (assets) and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax
crediis in the subsidiaries are immediafely fransferred {o the head entify.

The group nofified the Ausfralian Tax Office that it had formed an incore tax consolidated group to apply frem 1 August 2008.

Inventories

fnventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of manufaciured products includes direct matetials, direct fabour and an
appropriate porfion of variable and fixed overheads. Overheads are applied on the basis of normat operating capacity. Costs are assigned on the basis of
weighted average costs. Refer to Note 1(ab) for further details on changes in accounting policy.

Plant and Equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Plant and equipment

Plant and eguipment are measured on the cost basis. The carrying amount of plant and eguipment is reviewed annually by directars to ensure itis notin
excess of the recaverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount Is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that wilt be
received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted fo their present values in determining
recoverable amaunts,

The cost of fixed assets constructed within the consolidated group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate
proportion of fixed and variable overheads. Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or yecognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefis associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Al other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 636
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of alf fixed assets including capitalised lease assets, is depreciated on a straight-line or written down value basis over the assel's
useful life 1o the consolidated group corsmencing from the lime the asset is held ready for use,

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:
Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
Plant and equipment 15-40%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, af the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are included in the statemant of
comprehensive income. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred {o retained
earnings.

Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset, but not the legal ownership that Is transferred
to erities in the consolidated group, are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capilalised by recording an asset ard a liability at the lower of
the amounis equal to the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual vaiues.
Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-fine basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease ferm. Lease payments for operating
leases, where substantially all the risks and benefifs remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses In the periods in which they are incurred. Lease
incentives under operating leases are recognised as a fiability and amortised on & straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and NMeasurement

Financial aseets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a parly to the contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial
assets, this is equivalent fo the date that the company commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie trade date accounting is adopted).
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs except where the instrument is classified ‘at fair value through profit or
loss’ in which case transaction cosis are expensed to profit or foss immediately.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Finance instruments are subsequently measured at efther falr value, amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or cost. Fair value represents
the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability seitied, between knowledgeable, willing parties. Where avallable, quoted prices in an
active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Amortised cost is caloulated as:
{a) the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognifion
{b) less principal repayments

{c) pius or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount injtialty recognised and the maturity amount catculated using
the effective interest method; and

{d) less any reduction for impairment.

The effective inferest method is used to allocate interest income of Interest expense over the relevant period and is equivalent fo the rate that exaclly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (nckuding fees, transaction costs and other pramiums or discounts) through the expected life (or
when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term} of the financial instrument fo the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial fiability.
Revisions to expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition: of an income or expense
in profit or loss.

The group does not designate any interesis in subsidiaries, associates or joint venture enities as being subject to the requirements of accounting
standards specifically applicabie to financial Instruments.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or less
Financial assefs are classified at "air vaive through profit or loss” when they are either held for trading for the purpose of short term profit fzking,
derivatives not held for hedging purposes, or when they are designated as such to avoid an accouniing mismatch or to enabie performance
evaluation where a group of financial assets is managed by key management personnel on & fair value basis in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment sirategy. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes In carrying value being included in profit or

loss.
{ii} Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are
subsequently measured af amortised cost.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. {All other loans and receivables are classified as non-current assels.)

{i#f} Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derlvative financial assets that have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable payments, and it is the group's
intention fo hold these investments to maturity. They are subseguently measured at amortised cost.

Held-to-maturily invesiments are included in non-cusrent assets, except for those which are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. (Al other investments are classified as current assets.}

If during the period the Group sold or reclassified more than an insignificant amount of the held-to-maturity invesiments before maturity, the entire
hetd-to-maturity investments category would be tainted and reclassified as avaitable-for-sale.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 81 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

{iv) Available-for-sale financial assels
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not suitable {o be classifled into other categories of financial
assets due to their nature, or they are designated as such by raanagement. They comprise invesiments In the equity of other entities where there is
neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are includad in non-current assets, excepl for those which are expected fo mature within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. (Al other financial assets are classified as current assels.)

{v) Financial Liabilities
Nen-derivative financiat liabilities {excluding financial guarentees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Fair value
Fair value is determined based on current bid prices for all quoted Investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for ali unlisted
securities, including recent arm's length transactions, reference o similar instruments and optien pricing models.

impairment

At the end of each reporiing period, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrurment has been impaired. In the case of
available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged dedline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an impairment has arisen.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition

Financial asseis are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred fo another parly whereby the
entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabifities are derecognised where
the related ohligations are either discharged, cancelied or expire, The difference between the carrying value of the financial fiability extinguished or
transferred to another parly and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit

or loss.

Impairment of Asseis

At each the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whather there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. The assessment will include
the consideration of external and internal sources of information including dividends received from subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities
deemed to be out of pre-acquisition profits, If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the assel by comparing the recoverable
amaunt of ihe asset, being the higher of the asset's fair vaiue less sosts to sell and value in use, to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset’s
carrying vaiue over its recoverable amount is expensed to the statement of comprehensive income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwil and infangible assets with indefinite fives.
intangibles

Goodwill

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the sum of:

{i) the consideration transferred;

{ii} any non-conirolling interest; and

(iil) the acquisiticn date fair value of any previously hetd equity interest, over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acguired.

in determining the net identflable assets acquired, contingent liabilities of the acquiree are included to the extent to which they represent a present
obligation and can be measured refiably. ’

Refer to Note 12 for information on the goodwill policy adopted by the Group for acquisitions.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.

Goodwill Is tested for impairment annually and is alfecated to the Group’s cash generating units or groups of cash generating units, which represent the
towest level at which goodwill Is manitored but where such leve! is not larger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of gocdwilt related to the entity soid.

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary are accounted for as equity fransactions and do not affect the carrying values of goodwill,
Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

Functional and presentation currency
The functiona! currency of each of the group’s entities is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which that eniity operates.
The consolidated fnancial statements are presented in Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are fransiated info funciional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-menetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Non-menetary ilems measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the fransiation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except where deferred in
equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the franslation of non-monetary items are recognised directy in ecuity to the extent that the gain or loss is diractly
recognised in equity, otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED {FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 142 6356
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

Employee Bensfits
Prevision is made for the company's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Empioyee benefits that
are expected fo be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is seftled.

Employee benefils payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those
benefits. In determining the liability, considerafion is given o employee wage increases and the probabilily that the employee may saiisfy vesting
requirements. Those cashilows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expecied timing of
cashflows.

Equity-settled compensation

The Group operates equity-seltied share-based payment employee share and option schemes. The fair value of the equity to which employees become
entitled is measured at grant date and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase io an equily account. The fair
value of shares is ascertained as the market bid price, The fair value of options is ascertained using a Black-Scholes pricing model which incorporates all
market vesting conditions. The number of shares and options expected fo vest is reviewed and adjusted at the end of each reporting date such that the
amount recognised for services received as consideration for the equity instruments granted shall be based on the number of equity instruments that
eventuaily vest,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a legal or conslructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an ouifiow of
aconomic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measurad,

Gash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, depesits held at calf with banks, other short-ferm highly fiquid invesiments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-ferm borrowings in current liabitities on the statement of financiatl
position.

Revenue and Other income .

Revenue Is measured at the fair valle of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and velume rebates
allowed. Any consideration deferred is freated as the provision of finance and Js discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market
for gimilar arrangements. The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is inferest revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods s recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods and the cessation of ail invelvement in those goods.

Interest revenue Is recognised using the effective inferest rate method, which, for floating rate financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument,
Al dividends received shall be recognised as revenue when the right to receive the dividend has been established.
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liability oufstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received by the Group during the
reporting period which remalns unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amount being normatly paid within 30 days of recognition of
the liability.

Goods and Services Tax {GST)

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred s not recoverable from the Tax
Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.

Recelvables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the szaiement of cashflows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activities, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year,
When the Group applies an accounting policy refrospectively, makes a retrospeclive restatement or reclassifies ftems in its financial statements, a
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The directors evaluate estimates and judgments Incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowledge and best avaitable current
information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current frends and economic data, obiained both externally
and within the group.

Key Estimates
{i} Irnpairment

The Group assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaiuating conditions and events specific to the Group that may be Indicative of
impairment friggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assefs are reassessed using value-in-use calcuiations which incorporate various key assumptions.

With respect to cash flow projections for plant and equipment based in Australia, growlh rates of 3% have been factored into valuation models for the next
five years on the basis of management's expectations around the Group’s continued ability to capture market share from competitors, Cash flow growth
rates of 3% subseqguent to this period have been used as this reflects historical industry averages. The rates used incorporate aliowance for inflation. Pre-
tax discount rales of 10 years government bonds yield rates have been used in all models.

No impalrment has been recognised in respect of goodwill af the end of the reporting period. Should the projected furnover figures be outside 20% of
budgeted figures incorporated in value-in-use calculations, an impairment loss would be recognised up to the maximum carrying value of $1,549,502,
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Key Judgements

(B Provision for impairment of Receivables

The directors believe thaf a provision for doubtful debts of $39,038 (2009: $21,198) is reasonable and that all other trade deblors are fully recoverable as
at the end of financial year. .

{r} Adoption of new and revised accounting standards
Puring the current year the Group has adopted ail of the new and revised Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations applicable to iis operations
which became mandatory.

The adoption of these standards has impacted the recognition, measurement and disclosure of cerfain transactions. The foliowing is an explanation of the
impact the adoplion of these standards and interpretations has had on the financial statements of Heritage Brands Limited {Formerly Soda Brands Limited).

AASB 3 Business Combinations

in March 2008 the Australian Accounting Standards Board revised AASB 3, and as a result some aspects of business combination accounting have changed.
The changes apply only to business combinations which occur from 1 July 2009, Below is an overview of the key changes and the impact on the Group's
financial statements in refation ‘o the acquisition of an additional ownership interests in Incolabs Pty Lid, fnnoxa Group Ply Lid, Innoxa Holdings Pty Lid and
Innoxa Marks Ply Lid (the acquired companies).

Recognition and measurement impact

Recognition of Acquisifion Costs — The revised version of AASE 3 requires that all costs associated with & business combination be expensed in the period in
which they were incurred. Previously such costs were capitalised as part of the cost of the business combination.

No costs associated with the acquisition were capitalised.

Measurement of Contingent Considerations — The ravised AASB 3 requires that contingent considerations associated with a business combination be included
as part of the cost of the business combination, They are recognised at the fair vatue of the payment calculated having regard to probability of setflement. Any
subsequent changes in the fair value or probability of payment are recognisad in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that they relate
to condittons or events existing at acquisition date in which case the consideration paid is adjusted. The previous version of AASE 3 allowed such changes to
be recognised as a cost of the combination irmpacting goodwill,

In aceounting for the acquisition of an additional ownership interest in the acguired companies, no contingent consideration has been recegnised. There has
heen no current year impact on the statement of comprehensive income; however as the probability of payment changes somme impact may be noted in future

reporting periods.

Recognition of contingencies ~ The revised AASB 3 prohibits entities from recognising contingencles associated with a business combination, uniess they
meet the definition of a liabiity.

There were no confingencies associated with the acquisition of full ownership interest in innoxa Holdings Pty Lid.

Disclosure impact

The revised AASB 3 contains a number of additional disclosure requirements, not required by the previous version of AASE 3. The revised disclosures are
designed to ensure that users of the Group’s financial statements are able to understand the nature and financial impact of any business combinations on the

financial statements.
AASB 8 Operating Segments

In February 2007 the Australian Accounting Standards Board issued AASB 8 which replaced AASB 114: Segment Reporting. As a result, some of the required
operating segment disclosures have changed with the addition of a possible impact on the impairment testing of goodwill allocated to the cash generating units
{CBUs) of the entity. Below is an overview of the key changes and the impact on the Group’s financiat statements.

Measurement impact

Ideniification and measurement of segments - AASB 8 requires the 'managemert approach’ fo the identification measurement and disclosure of operating
segments. The 'management approach’ requires that operating segments be identified on the basis of internaf reporis that are regularly reviewed by the
entity’s chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of ailocating rescurces and assessing performance. This could also include the Identification of
operating segments which sell primarily or exclusively to other internal operating segments. Under AASB 114 segments were identified by business and
geographical areas, and only segments deriving revenue from external scurces were considered.

The adoption of the 'management approach’ to segment reporting has resulted in the identification of reportable segments largely consistent with the prior year.

Under AASB 8, operating segments are determined based on management reports, using the ‘management approach’, whereas under AASB 114 financial
results of such segments were recognised and measured in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, This has resulted In changes to the
presentation of segment resuits, with inter-segment sales and expenses such as deprecistion and impairment now being reported for each segment rather than
in aggregate for tofal group operations, as this is how they are reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.

{mpairment Testing of the Segments Goodwill

AASB 136: Impairment of Assets, para 80 requires that goodwill acquired in a business combination shall be allocated fo each of the acquirer's CGUs, or group
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each cash generating unit {CGU) which the goodwill is allocated to must represent
the lowest level within the entity at which goodwill is monitored, however i cannot be larger than an operating segment. Therefore, due to the changes in the
identification of segments, there is a risk that goodwill previously allocated to 8 CGU which was part of a larger segment could now be allocated across muitiple
sagments if a segment had to be split as a result of changes to AASB 8.

Management have considered the requirements of AASB 138 and determined implementation of AASE 8 has not impacted the CGU's of each operating
segment.
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Disclosure impact

AASB 8 requires a number of additionat quantitative and qualitative gisclosures, not previously required under AASE 114, where such information is utilised by
the chief operating decision maker. This information is now disclosed as part of the financial statements.

AASE 101 Presentation of Financial Statements

In September 2007 the Australian Accounting Standards Board revised AASB 101, and as a result there have been changes fo the presentation and disclosure
of certain information within the financlal statements. Below is an overview of the key changes and the impact on the Group's financial statements.

Disclosure impact

Terminology changes - The revised version of AASB 101 contalns a numbet of terminology changes, including the amendment of the names of the primary
financial statements.

Reporting changes in equify - The revised AASB 101 requires all changes in equity arising from fransactions with owners in their capacity as owners to be
presented separately fram non-owner changes in equity. Owner changes in equity are 1o be presented in the statement of changes in equity, with nen-owner
changes in equity presented in the statement of comprehensive income. The previous versicn of AASE 101 required that owner changes in equity and other
comprehensive income be presented in the statement of changes in equity.

Statement of comprehensive income - The revised AASE 101 requires all income and expenses to be presented in either one statement, the statement of
comprehensive income, or two statemenis, a separate income statement and a statement of comprehensive income. The previous version of AASB 101
required only the presentation of a single income staterment.

The group's financial stafements now contain a statement of comprehensive income.

Ofher comprefhensive income — The revised version of AASB 101 introduces the concept of “other comprehensive income” which comprises of income and
expense that are not recognised in profit or loss as required by other Austrafian Accounting Standards. lterns of other comprehensive income are to be
disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income. Entities are required to disciose the income tax refating to each component of other comprehensive
income. The previous version of AASE 101 did not contain an eguivalent concept.

{s) New Accounting Standards for application in future periods '

The AASE has issued new and amended accounting standards and inferpretations that have mandatory appiication dates for future reporting pericds. The
Group has decided against early adoption of these standards. A discussion of those future requirements and their impact on the Group follows:

e AASE O Financial Instruments and AASB 2009-11: Amendments to Australian Accounfing Standards erising from AASE 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4. 5, 7, 101, 102,
108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Inferpretations 10 & 12] (applicable for annual reporfing petiods commencing on or after 1
January 2013}

These standards are applicable retrospectively and amend the classification and measurement of financial assets. The Group has not yet determined any
potential impact on the financial statements.

The changes made to accounting requirements include: ‘

— simpiifying the classifications of financial assets into those carried at amortised cost and those carried at fair value

— simplifying the requirements for embedded derivatives

— removing the tainting rutes associated with held-to-maiurily assets

— removing the requirements to separate and fair value embedded derivatives for financial assets carried at amortised cost

— allowing an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on investments in equity instruments that are not held for frading in
other comprehensive income. Dividends in respect of these investments that are a refurn on invesiment can be recegnised in profit or loss and there
is no impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument

— financial assets wilt need fo be reclassified where there i$ a change in an entily’s business model as they are initially classified based on
(2) the objective of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
(b) the characteristics of the contraciual cash flows

o AASE 2009-4 “Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 2 and AASE 138 and AASE
Interpretations 9 & 16]" (applicable for annual reporting periods commencing from 1 July 2009) and AASB 2009-5 “Further Amendments fo Australian
Accaunting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 5, 8, 101, 107, 117, 118, 136 & 139] (applicable for annual reporting periods
commencing from 1 January 2010)

These standard detalls numerous non-urgent but necessary changes to accounting standards arising from the IASB's annuat iImprovements project. No
changes are expacied to materially affect the Group.

o AASE 2009-8 "Amendmenis fo Australian Accounting Standards — Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions [AASE 2f" (applicable for annual
reporting periods commencing on or affer 1 January 2010)

These amendments clarify the accounting for group cash-settied share-based payment fransactions in ihe separale or individual financial statements of the
entity receiving the goods or sarvices when the entity has no obligation to sellie the share-based payment transaction. The amendments incorporate the
reguirements previousty included in Interpretation & and Interpretation 11 and as a consequence these two Interpretations are superseded by the amendments.
These amendments are not expected fo impact the Group.

e AASE 2009-10: Amendmenis fo Australian Accounfing Standards - Classification of Rights lssues [AASE 132] (applicable for annual reporting pericds
commencing on or after 1 February 2010)

The amendments clarify that rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of an entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any currency are
equily instrumenis i the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro-rata to alt existing owners of the same class of ils own non-derivative equity
instruments. The amendmenis are riot expected to Impact the Group.

The Group does not anticipate early adoption of any of the above Australian Accounting Standards.
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Note 2 Revenue and Other Income
Note Consolidated Group Paren{ Entity
2010 2009 2010 2008
Revenue from Continuing Operations 3 $ $ $
Sales Revenue
— sale of goods 7,038,692 2,362,904 1,178,093 2,326,730

7,038,682 2,362,904 1,178,003 2,326,730

Other Revenue

— interes! received 2(a) 2,724 1,482 624 1,482

— gther revenue 52,924 - 100 -

55,648 1,482 724 1,482

Total Revenue 7,094,340 2,364,386 1,178,817 2,328,212
{a) Interestrevenue from:

- other persons 2,724 1,482 624 1,482

Total interest revenue on financial assets noi at fair value through profif or loss 2,724 1,482 624 1,482
Note 3 Profit for the Year
Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2609 2010 2009
(a) Expenses $ $ $
Cost of sales 3,940,113 2,278,689 918,847 2,253,520

Interest expense on financial lizbilities not at fair vatue through profit or loss:

— Ultimate parent entity 48,138 15,288 15,605 15,288

— Associated companies 47,470 14,588 13,981 15,296

— Other persons 76,865 38,765 47,973 38,065
Total inferest expense : 172,473 658,649 77,559 68,640
Impairment of non-cusrent investments - - - 3,808,961
Impairment of goodwill - 3,808,961 - -
Bad and doubtful debts:

— frade receivables 30,469 113,260 30,367 113,260
Total bad and doubtiu debts 30,469 113,260 306,367 113,260
Rental expense on operating leases
Loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 40,649 56,006 - 56,006

(b} Significant Expenses
The follewing significant revenue and expense items are relevant in
expiaining the financiai performance:

Reorganisation fransaction fees {541,824} ' - - -
Loss on impairment of goodwili - (3,808,961} - (3,808,261}

{541,824} (3,808,961} - (3,808,861)
Note 4 Income Tax Expense
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
Note $ $ $ $
() The compenents of tax expense comprise:
Current tax - - - -
Deferred tax 18 - - - -
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(b} The prima facte tax on profit from ordinary activities before
income tax is reconciled to the income tax as foliows:

Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities
before income tax at 30% (2009: 30%)

— consdlidated group (815,515)  (1,863,685)

— parent entity (248,3687)  (1,865,663)

Add:

Tax effect of.

- other non-allowable tems : 331,806 - 8,332 -

— Non deductibie impairment of goodwill - 1,142,688 - 1,142,688

— Deferred tax assets nof brought {o account 483,700 724,640 240,035 726,608
- 3,633 - 3,633

Less:

Tax effect of.

— Other deductible expenses - 3,633 - 3,633

Income tax atiributabie to entity - - “ -

0% 0%

The applicable welghted average effective tax rates are as follows: 0% 0%

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which will only be realised if the conditions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b} ocour:

Note 5 interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP)

fefer to the Remuneration Report contained in the Directors’ Report for details of the remuneration paid or payable to each member of the Group's key

management personnel for the year ended 31 July 2010.
The totals of reruneration paid to KMP of the Cempany and the Group during the year are as follows:

2010 2009
$
Shortterm employee henefits - 301,189 37,211
Post-employment benefits 24,421 11,611
s 325,620 328,822

KMP Options and Rights Holdings

The number of options over ordirary shares held during the financial year by each KMP of the Group is as follows:

Balance at Exercised
beginning of Granted as remuneration during the Other changes Balance atend Vested during Vested and Vested and
31 July 2010 year during the year year during the year of year the year exercisable unexercisable
FAIRFULL Andrew (Non- 250,000 250,000
© exec Chairmarn)

GHATTAS Nicolas {Ex 1,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - - - 1,000,000
Directors)
BRETT Hilton {Ex 250,000 - - (250,000} - - - 256,000
Director)
KULMAR Stephen (Ex 250,000 - - (250,000) - - - 250,000
Directors)

1,750,000 - - (1,500,000) 250,000 - - - 1,500,000

Balance at Exercised

beginning of Granted as remuneration during the Other changes Balance atend Vested during Vested and Vested and

31 July 2009 year during the year year during the year of year the year waxercisable unexercisable
FAIRFULL Andrew (Non- 250,000 260,00C
exec Chairman)
GHATTAS Nicolas {Ex 1,000,000 - - - 1,060,000 - - -
Directors)
BRETT Hilton {Ex 250,000 - - - 250,000 - - B
Director)
KULMAR Stephen (Ex 250,000 - - - 250,000 - - -
Directors)

1,760,000 - - - 1,750,000 - - -
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The number of ordinary shares in Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) held by each KMP of the Group during the financial year is as

follows:

31 July 20610

FAIRFULL David John (Non-exec
Chairman)

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-exec
Chairman)

MeGIBBON Christopher (General
Manager - shared services)

GHATTAS Nicolas {Ex Directors}
BRETT Hitton (Ex Director)

Kistani Holdings Pty Ltd represented
by Steven Beinart and Maxim Krok.

31 Juily 2009

FAIRFULL Andrew (Non-axe¢
Chalirman)

GHATTAS Nicolas (Ex Directors)
BRETT Hilion (Ex Director)

Kistani Holdings Pty Lid represented
by Steven Beinart and Maxim Krok,

Other KMP Transactions

issued on
Balance at Granted as exercise of
beginning of remuneration options during Other changes Balance at end
year during the year the year during the year of year
- - 520,000 - 620,060
115,000 588,000 713,000
- - - 3,070,000 3,070,000
1,275,600 - - - 1,275,000
150,660 - - - 180,000
11,369,080 . - - 41,368,060
12,909,060 - 620,000 3,668,000 17,157,060
Balance at Grénted as Issued on Other changes Balance af end
beginning of remuneration exercise of  during the year of year
year during the year options during
the year
115,000 115,000
1,275,000 - - - 1,275,000
150,000 - - - 160,000
- - - 11,369,060 11,368,060
1,540,060 - - 11,369,060 12,909,080

There have been no other fransactions involving equity instruments other thar those described in the tables above.

For details of other transactions with KMP, refer to Note 26; Related Party Transactions. For details of foans fo KMP, refer to Note 9: Trade and Other

Receivables,

Note 6 Auditors’ Remuneration

Remuneration of the auditor of the parent entity for:
— auditing or reviewing the financial report
— taxafion services provided by refated practice of auditor

Remuneration of sther auditors of subsidiaries for:

- audifing or reviewing the financlal report of subsidiaries

Note 7 Earnings per Share

{a) Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss

Profit/ {loss)
Eamings used to calculate basic EPS
Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS

{b) Recanciliation of éémings to profit or loss from continuing operations

Profit from continuing operations

Earnings used to calcutate basic EPS from continuing operations

Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS from confinuing cperations
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Gonsolidated Group

2010 2009
$ $
25,000 15,000
5,469 5,220

Parent Entity
2010 2009
$ &
" 15,000

5,220

Consolidated Group

2010 2009
$ §
(,718,382) (6,212,318}
(2,718,382) _ (6,212,318)
(2,718,382) (6,212,318}
(2,718,382)  (6,212,318)
(2,718,382) _ (6,212,318)
(2,718,382) _ (6,212,318)
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(¢} Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from discontinuing operations
Profit from discentinuing operations - -
Earnings used to calculated basic EPS from discontinuing operations - -

No, No.
(d} Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in
caiculating basic EPS 166,605,773 44,767,613
Weighted average number of dilutive options outstanding . 1,000,000 13,398,085
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year used in
calculating dilutive EPS 187,695,773 58,165,608
Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ § $
Cash at bank and in hand 354,136 19,879 50,991 18,022
. 27 384,136 19,879 50,991 18,022
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows Is
reconciled to ifems in the stalement of financial position as foliows:
Cash and cash eqguivalents 354,136 19,672 50,991 18,022
354,136 19,679 50,991 18,022
A ficating charge over cash and cash equivalents has been provided for certain debt. Refer to Note 17 for further details.
Nofe & Trade and Other Receivables
: Note Consolidated Group Parent Entily
2010 2008 2010 2009
% % $ $
CURRENT
Trade receivables Ye 989,251 308,153 216,174 289,824
Provision for impairment ad(i) {33,038) (21,198} {39,038} (21,198)
850,213 286,955 177,136 268,626
Amounts raceivable from:
— wholly-owned subsidiasies - - 2,828 222 171,111
Total current trade and other recelvables 550,213 286,955 3,005,358 439,737

{a) Provision For Impairment of Receivables
Current trade and term receivables are non-inferest bearing and are generally on 60-day terms. Non-current trade and term receivables are assessed for
recoverability based on the underlying ferms of the contract. A provision for impairment is recognised when there is an objective evidence that an
individual trade or term receivable is impaired. These amounis have been included in the other expenses item.

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

Opening  Charge forthe  Amounts Closing
Balance Year Whritter: Off Batance
01.08.08 31.067.09
Consolidated Group ) $ $ $
(7 Current frade receivables 2,243 18,955 - 21,198
2,743 18,955 - 21,198
Parent Entity
(i Curreni frade recelvables 2,243 18,855 : - 21,198
2,243 18,955 - 21,198
Opening  Charge for the Amounts Closing
Balance Year Wiritten Off Balance
01.08.0¢ 31.07.10
Consolidated Group $ § 5 $
(5 Curreni irade receivables 21,188 17,840 - 39,038
21,198 17,840 - 39,038
Parent Entity
() Currant frade receivables 21,198 17,840 - 39,038
21,198 17,840 - 39,038

Credit risk - Trade and Other Receivables

The Group has no sigaificant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counter party or graup of counter parties other than those receivables
specifically provided for and mentioned within Note 8. The class of assets described as Trade and Other Recelvables is considered to be the main source of
credit risk related to the Group.

The foliowing table details the Group's trade and ofher receivables exposed to credit risk {prior to collateral and other credit enhancements) with ageing
analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are considered as ‘past due’ when the debt bas not been seftled with the terms and conditions agreed
between the Group and the customer or counter party to the fransaction. Receivables that are past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency
of the debtors and are provided for where there are specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the Group.
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The balances of receivables that remain within initial frade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high credit quality.

Past due but not impairad
Consolidated Group Past due and (days overdue} Within initial
Gross Amount impaired <30 31-60 61-90 >90 trade ferms
2010 $ $ $ $ 3 % $
Trade and term receivables 950,213 39,038 154,859 868,785 55,890 140,944 567,673
Total 950,213 39,038 . 154,859 68,785 55,980 140,944 567,873
Past due but not impaired
Consolidated Group Past due and {days overdue) ! Within initial
Gross Amount impaired <30 31-60 - 6190 =80 frade terms
2009 3 3 3 $ $ 3 $
Trade and term receivables 286,955 21,198 - - - 23,782 284 371
Tofal 286,955 21,198 - - - 23,782 284 3714
Past due but not impaired
Parent Entity Past due and (days overdug) Within initial
Gross Amount impairesd <30 31-60 61-80 >0 trade terms
2040 $ $ 8 3 3 $ $
Trade and term receivables 177,136 39,038 22,971 21,130 11,892 110,783 49,397
Total 177,136 29,038 22,971 21,130 11,892 110,783 48,397
Past due but not impaired
Parent Entity Past due and (days overdue) Within initial
Gross Amount impaired <30 31-80 61-90 >80 trade tarms
2009 3 3 $ $ 3 3 3
Trade and term receivables 268,626 21,198 - - - 23,782 266,042
Total 268,626 21,188 - - - 23,782 266,042

The provision is provided for past due and impaired amount and yet to be written off.

Neither the Group nor parent entity holds any financlal assets with terms that have been renegatiated, but which would otherwise be past due or impaired.

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
. 2010 2009 2010 2009
(b) Financial Assets classified as loans and receivables Note $ $ $ $
Trade and other Receivables !
- Tofat Current 860,213 286,955 3,005,358 439,737
- Fotal Non-Current - - - -
Financial Assels 27 950,213 286,955 3,005,358 439,737
{c) Collateral pledged
A fioating charge over trade receivables has heen provided for certain debt. Refer to Note 17 for further details.
Note 10 Inventories
Note Gonsolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
] $ 3 3
CURRENT
At cost
Finished goods 881,409 905,220 110,000 884,846
Provision for siow maving/ obsolete stock - (263,533} - (263,533}
881,409 641,687 ~ 110,000 521,313
881,409 641,687 110,000 621,313
Note 11 Other Financial Assets
Note Cansolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2008
3 3 $ $
NON CURRENT
Other investments t1b - - 805 704
- - 805 704
(a) Available-for-sale financial assets comprise:
NON CURRENT
Unlisted investments, at recoverable amount
—. shares in other corporations at cost - - - 3,808,981
Less: impairment provision - - - (3,808,861}
Total non-cusrent availabie-for-sale financial assets 27 - - - -
(b} Other investments
NON CURRENT
Shares in subsidiaries - - 805 704
- - 805 704
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Note 12 Controiied Entities

{(a) Controlled Entities Consolidated

Country of Incorporation

Subsidiaries of Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Seda Brands Limited):

S0 Distributions Pty Lid
Salon Only Pty Ltd

Soda Brands (NZ) Limited
Soda Brands (UK) Limited
Kistani Pty Ltd

Innoxa Group Pty Lid
innoxa Holdings Py Lid
Innoxa Marks Pty Lid
Incotabs Ply Lid

* percentage of voting power is in proportion to ownership

Acquisition of Controlied Entities

{t)
On 26 October 2009, the parent entity exercised the call

The acquisition resulted in Group obtaining controf of Innoxa

- Purchase conslderation:
- Cash

{ess:
Cash
Receivables (i)
Inventories
Property, plant ardd equipment
Payables

ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Goodwiit (if)

Percentage Owned (%)~

2010 2009
Australia 100% 106%
Austratia 100% 100%
New Zeaiand 100% 100%
United Kingdom 100% 100%
Australia 100% 100%
Australia 100% 0%
Australia 160% 0%
Austrafia 100% 0%
Austratia 100% 0%

option over the entire issued share capitai of Innoxa Group Pty Ltd effective on 31 Qciober 2009,

Holdings Pty Ltd, Innoxa Marks Pty Lid and Incotabs Pty Lid.

Note

Acguiree's
carrying
amount Fair value
$ &
788,380 788,389
2,113,444 2,113,444
1,438,487 1,438,487
572,233 572,234
(6,482,055)  (6,482,055)
{1,649,502)  {1,548,501}
1,549,502

i The directors believe the receivables are fully recoverable and no provision for impairment is required.
i The goodwill is attributable to the significant synergies expected fo arise after the Group’s acquisition of innoxa Group Pty Lid.

Revenue of Innoxa Group Ply Lid and its subsidiaries included in the consolidated revenue of the Group since acquisition date on 31 Getober 2009 amounted
to §5,860,560. The operating loss of Innoxa Group Pty Ltd and iis subsidlaries included in consolidated profit of the Group since the acquisition date amounted

to $2,032,350.

Note 13 Plant and Equipment

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment:

At cost

Accumuiated depreciation

Totai Plant and Equipment

(a} Movements in Garrying Amounts

Movements in carrying amounts for each class of property,

Consolidated Group:

Balance at 1 August 2008
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation expense
Ratance at 31 July 2009
Additions

Depreciation expense
Balance at 31 July 2010

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
5 § § $
1,262,618 442,129 441,958 442129
{814,067} (383,780) {415,876) (383,780)
448,551 58,349 26,082 58,340
448,551 58,349 26,082 58,349

plant and equipment between the beginning and the end of the current financial year.

Plant and
Equipment Total
$ $
23,719 23,719
169,001 169,001
(58,006} (56,006)
(78,385) (78,365)
58,349 58,349
820,489 820,488
(430,287} {430,287}
448 551

448,661
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Parent Entity:

Balance at 1 August 2008 23,719 23,719

Additions 169,001 169,601

Disposais (56,008) {56,006)
Deprectation expense {78,365) {78,365)
Batance at 31 July 2009 58,349 58,349

Disposals {171) (7
Depreciation expense (32,096} {32,096)
Balance at 31 July 2010 26,082 26,082

Note 14 intangible Assets

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ $
Goodwill
Cost 5,368,463 3,808,961 - -
Accumulated impaired iosses (3,808,961) (3,808,961} - -
Net carrying value 1,549,602 - - -
Total intangibles 1,549,502 ~ ~ -
Consolidated Group:
Goodwili
$
Year ended 31 July 2009
Balance at the beginning of year 3,293,136
Additions 515,826
Impairment losses (3.808,981)
Year ended 31 July 2010
Batance af the beginning of year -
Additions 1,548,502
Closing value at 31 July 2010 1,549,602
Impairment Disclosures
Goodwill is ailocated to cash-generating unils which are based on the group's reporting segments
2010 2008
$ %
Distribution segment 1,548,602 -
Total 1,549,502 -

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit above is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Value-in-use is calculated based on the present
value of cash flow projections over a 10-year pericd with the period extending beyond five years extrapolated using an estimated growih rafe. The cash fiows
are discounted using the yield of 10-year government bonds at the beginning of the budget peried.

The foliowing assumptions were used in the value-in-use caleulations:

Growth Raie Piscount Rate
Distribution segment 3% 10 year government bonds
yield rates

Management has based the value-in-use caleulations on budgets for each reporting segment. These budgets use historical weighted average growth rates fo
projact revenue. Costs are calculated taking Into account historical gross marging as well as estimated weighted average inflation rates over the period which
are consistent with inflation rates applicable fo the tocations in which the segments operate. Discount rates are pre-tax and are adjusted to incorporate risks
associated with a pasticular segment.

Note 15 Other Assets

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ 3 $
CURRENT
Prepayments 129,897 33,583 11,448 33,583
Other assets 3,134 28,913 : - 28,913
133,131 652,496 11,448 62,498
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Note 16 ‘Trade and Other Payables

Note Consolidated Group Parent Enfity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ % 3
CURRENT
tUnsecured liabilities
Trade payables 1,058,684 327,955 261,182 327,236
Sundry payabies and accrued expenses 1,373,806 381,940 225,330 372,256
Amounts payable io:
— ultimate parent entily - 95,441 - 95,441
— other related parties 6,540 77,738 - 77,736
— Employees benefils 213,652 14,678 - 14,678
2,652,782 887,750 486,512 887,347
Note Consolidated Group Parent Endity
2010 2000 2010 2009
$ $ $ $
(a) Financial lizbilities at amortised cost classified as frade and other payables
Trade and other payables
— Total Current 2,652,782 897,760 486,512 887,347
Financiat liabilities as trade and other payables 27 2,652,782 867,750 486,512 887,347
Note 17 Borrowings
Note Consolidated Group Parent Enfity
2010 2009 2016 2009
$ § $ $
NON-CURRENT
Secured liabilitles
Ultimate parent entity 17{a) - 315,288 - 315,288
Major shareholder (Maximize Equity Pty Ltd) 17{a) 385,000 314,597 - 314,597
Major shareholder (Soul Private Equity Ltd) 17 (@) 385,000 - - -
Total nen-current borrowings 770,0C0 529,885 - §29 885
Total borrowings . 27 770,000 529,886 - 629,885
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2008 2010 2009
$ $ § $
{a) Total current and non-current secured Habilities:
Uttimate parent entity - 315,288 - 315,288
Retated entifies (Major sharehclders) 770,000 314,597 - 314,597
770,000 528,885 - 628,885
(b} The carrying amounis of non-current assets
pledged as security are:
Fixed charge over fixed assets. 448,651 58,349 26,887 59,053
448,561 58,349 26,887 59,053
(¢} Collateral provided :
Financial assets that have been pledged as part of the total collateral for the benefit of secured debt are as follows:-
Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2000 2010 2009
$ $ $ $
Cash and cash equivalents . 8 354,136 19,679 50,091 18,022
Trade receivables 9 950,213 286,655 177,136 268,628
Total financial assets pledged 1,304,349 306,634 228,127 286,648

The collateral over cash and cash equivaients represents a floating charge.
The loans are secured by first ranking fixed and floating charge described above carrying a fixed rate of interest @10% per annum.
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Note 18 Tax

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ $
CURRENT
Income Tax Payabie - - - -
TOTAL - - - -

Deferred tax assets not brought to account, the benefits of which wilt only be realised if the conditions for deductibility set out in Note 1(b) ocour:
- temporary differences $353,274 (2009: $21 ,468)
- tax losses: operating losses $1,715,1483 (2009 operating losses $1,296,091)

Note 18 Provisions
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2000
CURRENT $ 3 $ $
Short-term Employee Benefits '
Opehing balance at 1 August 2008 - - - -
Additional provisions 7,246 - - -
Ralance at 31 July 2010 7,246 - - z
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
NON CURRENT $ $ $ 3
tong-term Employee Benefils
Opening balance at 1 August 2008 - - N -
Additional provisions 201,003 - - -
Balance at 31 July 2010 201,083 - - -
Analysis of Total Provisions Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2000
$ 3 $
Current 7,246 - - -
Non-current 201,093 - - -
208,339 - - -

Provision for Long-term Employee Benefits

A provision has been recognised for employee-entiflements relating to long service jeave. In calcutating ihe present value of fulure cash flows in respect of long
service leave, the probability of long service leave being faken is based on historical data. The measurement and recognition eritetia relating to employee
henefits has been included in Note 1 to this report.

Note 20 Issued Capital

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $
230,850,825 (2000: 46,156,208]) fully paid ordinary shares 11,747,678 7,885,008 11,747,678 7,885,006

11,747,678 7,885,006 11,747 678 7,885,008

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
(a) Ordinary Shares 2010 2008 2010 2008
No. No. No. No.
At the beglnning of the reporting period 46,158,208 34,000,600 46,156,208 34,000,000
Shares issued during the year
— B/09/2008 - 12,002,465 - 12,092,465
— 30/07/2008 - 63,743 - 63,743
— 30/10/260¢ 570,000 - 570,000 -
— 16/12/2009 . 193,133,617 - 193,133,617 -
At the end of the reporting pericd 230,860,825 46,156,208 230,850,825 46,156,208

On 30/10/09 the company Issued 570,000 ordinary shares {0 complete the acquisition of Incalabs Holdings Pty Ltd and its subsidieries.

On 16/12/09 the company issued 193,133,617 ordinary shares at $0.02 each fo shareholders on the basis of 1 share for every 5.2 shares held. The
shares rank for dividends paid after 16/12/09.

At the shareholders meetings each ordinary share is entitied to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each sharsholder has one vole on a show of
hands
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{b) Options
i) For information relating te the Heritage Brands Limited (Formesly Soda Brands Limited) employes option pian, including details of options issued,
exercised and lapsed during the financial year and the options outstanding at year-end. Refer to Note 24 Share-based Payments.

{iy For information refating fo share options issued to key management personnet during the financial year. Refer to Note 24: Share-based Payments.

() Capital Management
Management conirol the capital of the group in order to maintain a good debt to equity ratio, provide the sharehoiders with adequate refurns and ensure

that the group can fund its operations and continue as a going concem.
The group's debt and capital includes ordinary share capital and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.

There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

Management effectively manages the group’s capitat by assessing the group's financial risks and adjusting its capital structure in response to changes in
these risks and in the market, These responses include the management of debt levels, distributions to shareholders and share issues.

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to controt the capital of the group since the prior year. This strategy is to ensure
that the group's gearing ratio remains below 100%. The gearing ratios for the year ended 31 July 2010 and 31 July 2009 are as follows:

Consalidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2008
Note § $ § ]
Total borrowings 16, 17 3,422,782 1,527,635 486,512 1,817,232
Less cash and cash equivaients 8 (354,136) {19,679) (50,991) (18,022)
Net debt 3,068,646 1,507,956 438,621 1,499,210
Total equity 685,821 (458,469} 2,718,172 (316,611
Total capital . 3,754,467 1,049,487 3,153,693 1,182,599
Gearing ratio 82% 144% 14% 127%
Note 21 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2008 2010 2009
$ $ § $

Estimates of the potential financial effect of contingent liabilities that may
become payable:

Confingent Liabilities

Employee disputes

The consolidated group is currently defending claim brought by Austrafian 157,017 - 157,017 -
Taxation Office in relation to unpaid Superannuation Guarantee Charge of

$217,311. The consolidated group has recognised $60,204 as payable in the

financial statements. The management is confident that the claim will [imited to

amount already provided in the financial statements based on the

reconciliations prepared by the management.

Note 22 Operating Segments

Segment information

Ildentification of reportable segments
The Group has identified ifs operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the board of directors {chief operating decision

makers) in assessing performance and in determining the aliocation of resources.

The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category and service offerings since the diversification of the Group's operations inherently have
notably different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria. Operating segments are therefore determined on the same basis.

Reportable segmenis disclosed are based on aggregating operating segments where the sagments are considered to have simiiar economic characteristics
and are alse simiar with respect to the following:

e the products sold and/or services provided by the segment;

e the type or class of customer for the products or service;

« the distribution method; and

Types of products and services by segment
(i Distribution
The distribution segment distributes Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limiled)'s brand and [nnoxa brand items both domestically and

internationally.
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Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating
segments
{2) Accounting policies adopted

Unless stated otherwise, all amounis reporied to the Board of Directors as the chief decision maker with respect to operating segments are determined in
accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to thosa adopted in the annual financial statements of the Group.

(b} Segment assets

Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to that segment that receives the majority of economic value from that assef. In
the majerity of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their nature and physical focation.

{6} Segment Habililies

{ iabilities are allocated to segments where there is direct nexus between the incutrence of the liability and the operations of the segment. Borrowings and

tax fiabilities are generally considered 1o relate to the Group as a whole and are not a

certain direct borrowings.
(d) Unallocated items

flocated. Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and

The following item of revenue, expense, assets and liabiliies are not allocated to operating segments as they are not considered part of the core

operations of any segment:
+ Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments

« Impairment of assets and other non-recurring items of revenue or expense

» Income {ax expense

« Deferred tax assets and liabitities
= Current tax fiabiiities

« Other financiai liabilities

+ Infangible assets

« Retirement benefit obligations

{e) Comparative information

This is the first reporting periad In which AASB 8 has been adopted. Comparative information has been restated io conform to the requirements of this

standard.
(i) Segment performance
Distribution - Distribution - Total
Soda Innoxa
31 July 2016 $ $ $
REVENUE A
External sales 4,178,093 5,860,599 7,038,602
inter-segment sales - -
Interest revenue 624 2,100 2,724
Total segment revenue 1,178,717 5,862,698 7,041,416
Reconciliation of segment revenue fo group revenue
Other revenus - - 52,924
Total group revenue 7,094,340
Segment loss before tax (686.032) (2,032,350) (2,718,382)
Reconciliation of segment result to group net profitdoss before tex
Net profit before tax from condinuing operations {2,718,382)
Distribufion - Distribution - Totat
Soda Other
31 July 2009 $
REVENUE
External sales 2,326,730 36,174 2,362,904
Infer-segment sales - - -
Interest revenue 1,482 - 1,482
Total segment revenue 2,364,386
Recondifiafion of segment revenue fo group revenue -
Inter segment elimination -
Total greup revenue 2,364,386
Segment net loss before tax (6,212,318)
Reconeiliation of segment resulf to group net profitffoss before tax
Net profit before tax from continuing operations {8,212,318)
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(i} Segment assets

Distribution - Distribution -
Soda Innoxa Total
31 July 2010 $ $ $
Segment assets 4,316,942
Segment assel increases for the period:
— acquisitions 2,004,063 1,243,713 3,247,776
2,004,063 1,243,713 3,247,716
Total group assets 4,316,942
Distribution - Distribution -
Soda Innoxa Total
31 July 2009 $ $ $
Segment assets 1,069,166
Segment asset increases for the pericd:
Totatl group assets 1,069,166
(i) Segment liabilities
Distribution ~ Distribution -
Soda innoxa Total
31 July 2010 § $ §
Segment liabilities 3.531,121
Total group liabilities 3,631,121
Distribution - Distribution -
Soda innoxa Totat
31 July 2009 $ § $
Segment liabitities 1,527,635
Total group liabilities 1,527,635
{iv} Revenue by geographical region
Revenue attributable to externat cusiomers is disclosed below, based on the location of the external customer:
31 July 2010 31 July 2009
$ $
Ausiralia 7,036,017 2,326,730
New Zealand 2,675 36,174
Total revenue 7,038,692 2,362,904
{v} Assets by geographical region
The location of segment assets by geographical location of the assets is disclosed beiow:
31 July 2010 31 July 2009
% $
Australia 4,316,638 1,200,621
New Zeatand 1 (131,457}
United Kingdom 2 2
Total Assets 4,316,042 1,069,166
(vi) Major customers
The Group has a number of customers to whom it provides both products and services.
Note 23 Cash Fiow Information
Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2009 2010 2009
8 $ $
(a} Reconciiiation of Cash Flow from Operations with Loss
after income Tax
Profit after income tax (2,718,382}  (6,212,318) (827,800) (5,218,878)
Non-cash flows in profit
Depreciation 183,483 78,365 32,006 78,365
impairment of goodwili - 3,808,961 - 3,808,061
Net (gain¥/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 86,006 - 56,008
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects of
purchase and disposal of subsidiaries
(Increase)/decrease in frade and term receivables (663,257) 75,409 161,648 383,374
(increaseddecrease in other assels (70,635) 304,321 51,048 304,324
(increaseldecrease in inventeries (385,032) 1,077,880 511,313 1,051,136
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and aceruals (223,018) 517,487 {285,203) 588,777
Increasel(decrease) in other payable - (868,724) s - (1,069,739)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 208,339 {24,001} {14,679) {9,322)
Cash flow from operations (3,668,501} (1,186,603} (371,668)  (1,016,996)
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{b) Acquisition of Entities

During the year 100% ownership interest in thrioxa Group

Pty Ltd was acquirad. Detalls of this fransaction are:

Purchase consideration

Consisfing of:

— Cash consideration 1 “ - -
Total consideration 1 . Z -

Assets and liabilities held at acquisition date: :
Cash 788,389 - " -

Receivabies 2,113,444 - - -
Inventories 1,438,487 - - -
Property, plant and equipment 572,234 - - -
Payables {6,462,055) - - -

{1,648,501) - . -
Goodwill on consolidation 1,548,502

The goodwill is attribuiable to the sigrificant synergies axpected to arise after the Group's acquisition of Innoxa Group Pty Ltd.
No amount of the goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.

Note 24 Sharg-based Payments
(i) ©On 0t Dacember 2006, 1,750,000 share options were granted to directors to take up ordinary shares at an exercise price of 25cents each. On 28 October

2009, the directors resclved to cancel 1,500,000 options previously issued to directors as share based payments, The remaining options are exercisable
on or before 31 July 2012, The oplions hald no voting rights and are not transierable.

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
A summary of the reovements of all company options issued is " Weighted Weighted
as follows: Number average Number average
exercise price exercise price

Qutstanding as at 31 July 2008 1,750,000 28¢ 1,750,G00 25¢
Granted - -

OQutstanding as at 31 July 2009 1,756,600 1,750,000

Forfeited/ cancelled 1,500,000 25c 1,500,000 25¢
Qutstanding as at 31 July 2010 250,060 250,000

Options exerclsable as at 31 July 2010; 250,000 25¢ 250,000 25¢c
Options exercisable as at 31 July 2009: 1,750,000 25¢ 1,750,000 25¢

Included under empioyee benefits expense in the staterment of comprehensive income is $nit which refates to equity settled share based payment transactions
{2000 nif), since the exercise prive of options is higher than the the quoted share price.

Note 25 Events After the Reporting Period

1. At an Extracrdinary meeting of shareholders held on 06 August 2010 the shareholders of the company:
- Approved the purchase of 100% interest in Creative Brands Pty Ltd (CB), in consideration for the Issue by the company of 217,762,810 ordinary shares
and the appointment of following former associates of CB as directors of the Company:
a) William McCariney
b) Stephen Leslie Mason
¢} Stephen Donald Alfred Goodey
d) Peter Henry Townsend Cox :
Approved change of company name from Soda Brands Limited to Heritage Brands Limited to better reflect the brand value of the group.

2. Name of the company was changed to Herltage Brands Limited on 12 August 2010,

3. The share sale agreement between Herliage Brands Limited and CB was executed on 16 August-2016.

4, The executive service agreement with Stephen Donald Alfred Goodey as per terms of sale agreement was executed on 10 August 2010.
. A deed of equalisation for new loans to be provided by incoming directors was executed on 20 August 2010

. A foan agreement for new facifities from shareholders amounting o $2.8 millions was execuled on 20 August 2010.

. New Loans amounting to $962,857 were received from shareholders to the group.

5

6

7. New shares issued to CB were listed on NSX on 10 August 2010,

8

9. Operations were amalgameted and relocated to CB premises in Melbourne, in August 2010
1

0. A fiability of $ 227,555 accrued in refation to redundancy of staff due to moving of operation in Victoria.
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Note 26 Related Party Transactions

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and
conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties unless
otherwise staled.

Transachons with related parties:

(a)

)

©

&)

Uitimate Parent Company
Cash loan from utfimate parent entity, Souls Private Equity Limited (SPEL)

Payment of interest on cash loans provided by SPEL

Other payables to SPEL

Other Related Parties
Cash foan from maior shareholder ~ Maximize Equity Ply Lid (MEPL)

Cash loan from major shareholder - Soul Private Equity Lid (SPEL)
Payment of interest on cash loans provided by MEPL.

Payment of inferast on cash loans provided by SPEL

Other payables to incolabs Pty Lid

Payment of management fees

Whoily owned subsidiaries
Receivablies from - Soda Brands (NZ) Piy 1.d

Identification of Related Parties

Souls Private Equity Limited held 47.93% of the issued share capital of the
parent entity as at 31 July 2010 {2009: 50.27%) and Maximize Equity Pty
Lid held 38.12% of the issued capital of the parent entity (2009: 0%).

Note 27 Financial Risk Management

The group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, foans to and from subsidiaries and leases.

Consoiidated Group

2010
$

385,000
385,000
47,470
48,138

189,701

2009
$

315,288
15,288

95,441

314,667

14,596

77,736

Parent Entity

2010
5

13,981
16,605

2008
3

315,288
15,288

95,441

314,597

15,296

77,736

171,111

The fotals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial
statements, are as foliows:

Financial Assels
Cash and cash equivalents

l.oans and receivables

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables
- Borrowings

Total Financial Liabliities

Financial Risk Management Policies

Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management
The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk consisting of interest rate risk and foreign

clrrency risk.

a.

Credit risk

Consolidated Group Parent Entity
2010 2009 2010 2008
$ $ $ $
354,136 19,679 50,991 18,022
950,213 286,965 3,005,358 439,737
1,304,349 306,634 3,056,348 457,759
2,652,782 897,750 486,512 887,347
770,600 629,885 - 629,885
3,422,782 1,527,635 486,512 1,517,232

Expostire to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-performance by counterparties of contract obligations that could lead to a

financiat loss o the Group,

Credit risk is managed through the maintenance of procedures {such procedures inciude the uilisation of systems for the approval, granting and renewal
of credit limits, regular monitoring of exposures against such fimits and monitoring of the financia! stability of significant customers and counterpariies),
ensuring fo the extent possible, that customers and counterparties to transactions are of sound credit worthiness. Such monitoring is used In assessing

recelvables for impairment,

Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in finandial institutions that maintain a high credit rating. Where the Group is unable fo ascertain a
satisfactory credit risk profile in relation to a customer or counterparly, the risk may be further managed through title retention clauses over goods or
obtaining security by way of personal or commercial guarantees over assels of sufficlent value which can be claimed against in the event of any default.
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Credit Risk Exposures

The maximum expesure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at balance date, excluding the value of any coilateral or other secusity held is
equivalent to the carrying value and classification of those financial assefs (net of any provisions} as presented in the statement of financial position.
Credit risk also arises through the provision of financial guarantees, as approved at Board fevel, given to parties securing the Fabilities of certain
subsidiaries (refer Note 12(e) for detaiis).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties. However, on a geographic basis, the
Group has significant credit risk exposures to Australia given the substantial operations in those regions. Details with respect to credit risk of Trade and
Other Receivables is provided in Note 9.

Trade and other recelvables that are neither past due or impaired are considered to be of high credit quality. Aggregales of such amounts are as detailed
at Note &. ’

Credit risk refated to balances with banks and other financial insfitutions is managed by the Board. Such poficy requires that surplus funds are only
invested with counterparties with & Standard and Poor’s rafing of at least AA+. The following table provides informatien regarding the credit risk relating to
cash and money market securities based on Standard and Poor's counterparty credi rafings.

. Note Consolidated Group Parent Entity
i 2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents
- AAA Rated 354,136 18,679 50,991 18,022

b. Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling ils debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial
liabilities. The Group manages this risk through the foliowing mechanisms:

+ preparing forward looking cash flow analysis in refation fo ils operationa!, investing and financing activities
« maintaining a reputable credit profile

« managing credit risk related to financial assets

« only investing surplus cash with major financial institutiens

« comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financiai asseis

c. Market Risk

i. [Interestrate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting period whereby a fufure change in
interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. The Group has horrowings from Hs uliimate holding company
and other related entities/ shareholders on fixed rates of interest and not exposed to any material interest rate risk.

it. Foreign exchange risk
Exposure to foreign exchange risk may result in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuating due to movement in foreign
exchange rates of currencies in which the Group holds financial instruments which are other than the AUD funictional currency of the Group.

The foliowing table shows the foreign currency risk on the financial assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the operations. The foreign currency risk in the books of the parent is considered immateriai and is therefore not shown.

2010 Net financial assets/{liabilities) in AUD §

Consolidated NZD AUD Total AUD
Functional currency of Group entity

Australian Dollars - 685,820 685,820
New Zealand Dollars 1 1
Statement of financial position exposure 1 685,820 - - 685,821
2009 Net financial assets/{liabilities} in AUD §

Consolidated NZD AUD Total AUD
Functional currency of Group entity

Australian Dollars - (316,811 (316,611}
New Zealand Dollars (141,858) - {141,558)
Statement of financial position exposure (141,858) (316,811) - - {458,469)
iil. Price risk

The group is exposed to price risk in respect of packaging, raw material and finished goods prices.

Net Fair Values
Fair value estimation

The falr values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared fo their catrying values as presented in the
statement of financial position. Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a Eabilify settled, batween knowledgeable, willing
parties in an arm's length fransaction.

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated ar subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions may have a material impaet on the
arounis estimated, Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been defailed below. Where possible, valuation information used to calcuiate fair value is
extracted from the market, with more refiable information available from markets that are actively traded. in this regard, fair values for listed securities are
obtained from quoted market bid prices. Where securities are unfisted and no market quotes are avalilable, fair vaiue is obiained using discounted cash flow
analysis and other valuation fechniques commonly used by market parficipants.

Differences between fair values and carrying values of financial insiruments with fixed inferest rates are due to the change in discount rates being applied by
the market since their initial recognition by the Group. Most of these instruments which are carred at amortised cost (Le. term receivables, held-to-maturity
assets, loan liabilities) are to be held until maturity and therefore the net fair value figures calculated bear little relevance fo the Group,
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 636
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2010

Footnote 2010 2008
Net Carrying Net Carrying

Vaiue Net Fair Vaiue Value Net Fair Value
Consolidated Group $ $ $ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i 354,136 354,138 18,679 19,679
Trade and other receivables {i) 850,213 950,213 286,955 286,955
Toftal financial assets 1,304,348 1,304,348 308,634 306,634
Financial liabilities ’
Trade and other payables (i) 2,652,782 2,652,782 897,750 897,750
Other debt (i} 770,000 770,000 629,885 629,885
Total financial liabilities 3,422,782 3,422,782 1,627,635 1,527,635

Footnote 2010 2009
Net Carrying Net Carrying

Value Net Fair Value Value Net Fair Value
Parent Entity $ $ § $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (i) 50,091 50,091 18,022 18,022
Trade and other receivables (i) 3,005,358 3,005,358 439,737 438,737
Total financial assets 3,056,348 3,056,344 457,759 457,759
Financial Habilities
Trade and other payables {0 486,512 486,612 887,347 887,347
Other debf (iiy - - 629,885 629,885
Total financial liabilities 486,512 486,512 1,817,232 1,617,232

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies:
(i) 'Cash and cash equivalents, trade and cther recelvables and trade and other payabies are short term instruments in nature whose cariying value is
equivalent to fair value. Trade and other payables includes amounts provided for relating to annual leave.

(iy Other debis are borrowings from ultimate parent company/ other major shareholders, whese carrying value is equivalent {o fair value.

Noie 28 Company Detaifs

The registered office and the principal place of business of the company is:
Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited)

30 Bando Road

Springvale

VIC 3171
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors of the company declare that:

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages § to 35, are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001 and:
(a) comply with Accounting Standards; and
(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 July 2010 and of the performance for the
year ended on that date of the company and consclidated group;

2. the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer have each declared that:
() the financial records of the company for the financial year have been properly maintained in
accordance with section 286 of the Corporations Act 2001;
(b) tihe financial statements and notes for the financial year comply with the Accounting Standards; and
{c) the financial staterments and notes for the financial year give a true and fair view,

3. in the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay #s
debis as and when they become due and payable.

FThis declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

/ :
Director M‘é—/ _
/ /ywﬁw_l_ David John (Non-exec Chairman)

Dated this 28th day of October 2010
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Chartered Accountanis

HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED)

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Meritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) (the
company) and Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) and controlled entities (the consolidated entity),
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 July 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the
company and the entities it controlied at the year's end ar from time to time during the financiat year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Repor{

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances. In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASBE 101: Presentation
of Financial Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalenis to International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) ensures that the financial report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with IFRS.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on the financiai report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with refevant ethical
requirements retating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial report is free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmenis, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion. ‘
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: ¢1 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED)

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, provided to the directors of Heritage
Rrands Limked (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) on 29 October 2010, would be in the same terms if provided to the
directors as at the date of this auditor’s report.

Auditor's Opinion
In our opinion;
a. the financial report of Heritage Brands Limited (Formerly Soda Brands Limited) and Controlled Entities is in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
i. giving a true and fair view of the company and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 July 2010 and of their
performance for the year ended on that date; and
ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the
Corporations Regulations 2001,

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Significant uncertainty regarding continuation as a Going Concern

Without quaiification to the audit opinion expressed above, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements,
which states that to continue as a going concern the Group requires additional funding to be secured within the next
year from sources including:

* deferment of the repayment of existing borrowings from the major shareholders,

* raising additional borrowings from major shareholders,
* equity capital raising, and

* the generation of sufficient funds from operating activities, subsequent to the acquisition of 100% interest in the
Creative Brands Pty Ltd and consolidation of the business activities in Victoria.

if the Group is unable to continue as a going concern it may be required to realise it's assets and extinguish it's liabllities
other than in the normal course of business and at amounts different to those stated in the financial statements.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in the directors’ report for the year ended 31 July 2010. The
directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's QOpinion
in our opinion the Remuneration Report of Heritage Brands Limited {Formerly Soda Brands Limited) for the year ended
31 July 2010, complies with section 300A of the Corperations Act 2001.

Name of Firm: Rothsay Chartered Accountants

1772

Name of Partner; nk Vrachas
Address: Level 1, 12 O'Conneli Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Dated this 20th day of October 2010
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR LISTED PUBLIC COMPANIES

The following additional information is required by the Australian Stock Exchange Lid In respect of tisted public companies only.
1. Shareholding

2. Distribution of Shareholders Number

Category {size of holding) Ordinary Redeemable
11,000 - -
1,001 ~ 5,000 2 -
5,001 — 10,000 93 -
10,001 ~ 106,000 127 -
100,001 ~ and over 42 -

264 -

b.  The number of shareholdings held in jess than marketable parcels is nil.

¢ The names of the substantial shareholders listed in the holding company's register as at 39 July 2010 are:

Number
Sharehoider Ordinary Preference
Souls Private Equity Limited 114,962,106 -
Maximize Equity Pty Lid 91,431,644 -
Kistani Holdings Pty Limited 11,368,080 -
Mr Chrisiopher Mo Gibbon 3,070,000 -
Avenue Investments {Aust) Pty Lid 1,275,000 , -

d. Voting Rights
The voting rights attached to each class of equity security are as foilows:
Crdinary shares
~ Each ordinary share is entitled o one vote when a poll is called, otherwise each member present at a meeting or by proxy
has one vote on a show of hands.

e. 20 Largest Shareholders — Ordinary Shares

Number of Ordinary % Held
Fully Paid Shares of lssued
Name Held Ordinary Capital
1. Souis Private Equity Limited 114,962,108 47.93%
2. Maximize Equity Pty Ltd 91,431,644 38.12%
3. Kistani Holdings Pty Limited 11,368,060 4.74%
4, Mr Christopher Mc Gibbon 3,670,600 1.28%
5. Avenue Invesimenis (Ausf) Pty Lid 1,275,000 0.53%
8.  STYLZ Franchising Ply Lid 1,200,000 0.50%
7.  Hair Fx Austrajia Pty Lid 723,405 0.30%
8.  Fairfull Nominees Pty Lid 713,000 0.30%
8. D J Fairfull Pty Ltd 620,000 0.26%
10. Herway Ply Lid 548,106 0.23%
11. Frank Boffa Pty Limited 548,106 0.23%
12. Cordony Safons Pty Ltd 548,108 0.22%
13. Cordony & Co Py Ltd 548,106 0.23%
14, Chris Boffa Ply Ltd 548,106 0.23%
15. Murang Pty Lid 498,000 0.21%
16. Mrs Mary Ghattas & 466,667 0.19%
17.  Scarf Family-Superarnuation 279,470 0.12%
18.  Mr Phillip Anthony Riofo 279,000 0.12%
18. Tidereef Pty Lid 261,000 0.11%
20, Sagittarius Ply Lid 248,000 0.10%
230,134,882 95.95%
f. 20 Largest Shareholders — Redeemable Prefererice Shares
Number of % Held
Redeemable of Issued
Preference Fully Redeemable
Paid Shares Held _ Preference Shares
nil nil
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HERITAGE BRANDS LIMITED (FORMERLY SODA BRANDS LIMITED) ABN: 91 081 149 635
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR LISTED PUBLIC COMPANIES

The name of the company secretary is McGIBBON Christopher William.
The address of the principal registered office in Australia is 30 Bando Road, Springvale, VIC 3171. Telephone 03 8574 2100,

Registers of secutities are heid at the following address
30 Bando Road, Springvale, VIC 3171

Stock Exchange Listing
Quotation has been granied for all the ordinary shares of the company on all Member Exchanges of the National Stock

Exchange Limited.

Unquoted Securities

Options over Unissued Shares
A total of 1,000,000 options are on issue.
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